UNIVERSITI MALAYSIA SABAH

BORANG PENGESAHAN STATUS TESIS

TAJUK

:

PENENTU KETAATAN JENAMA DAN KESAN KEPUASAN

PENGGUNA: DALAM KONTEKS TELEFON BIMBIT

HAZALI

SARJANA PENTADBIRAN PERNIAGAAN

Saya, Siti Mardalinah Ardian Bt. Neezm mengaku membenarkan tesis sarjana ini di simpan di perpustakaan Universiti Malaysia Sabah dengan syarat-syarat kegunaan berikut:

1. Tesis adalah hak milik Universiti Malaysia Sabah.

2. Perpustakaan Universiti Malaysia sabah dibenarkan membuat salinan untuk tujuan pengajian sahaja.

3. Perpustakaan dibenarkan membuat salinan tesis ini sebagai bahan pertukaran institusi pengajian Tinggi.

4. TIDAK TERHAD

Penulis: Siti Mardalinah Ardian Bt. Neezm

Alamat: Pos Mini Indah Permai

Penyelia: En Oswald Aisat Igau

Peti Surat 868, 88450, Kota Kinabalu

Penyelia Bersama: Dr. Amran

TANDATANGAN PUSTAKAWAN

Harun.

Tarikh: 28 Julai 2010

Catatan: Tesis dimaksudkan SEBAGAI TESIS ijazah Doktor Falsafah dan Sarjana secara penyelidikan atau disertasi bagi pengajian secara kerja kursus dan penyelidikan atau laporan Projek Sarjana Muda (LPSM)



DECLARATION

I hereby certify that the material in this thesis is my own except for quotations, excerpts, equations, summaries and references which have been duly acknowledged.

Siti Mardalinah Ardian Bt. Neezm

PE2007-8622 28 June 2010



CERTIFICATION

NAME : SITI MARDALINAH ARDIAN BT. NEEZM

MATRIC NO. : **PE2007-8622**

TITLE : THE DETERMINANT OF BRAND LOYALTY AND

THE MEDIATING EFFECT OF CUSTOMERS' SATISFACTION: IN MOBILE PHONE CONTEXT

DEGREE : MASTER OF BUSINESS ADMINISTRATION

VIVA DATE : 28 JUNE 2010

DECLARED BY

1. SUPERVISOR

Oswald Aisat Igau

2. CO SUPERVISOR

Dr. Amran Harun

Signature





ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

Praise be to Allah, The Most Merciful, The Most Compassionate, who has bestowed upon me strength and patience to complete this Master of Business Administration program.

My highest gratitude goes to my Supervisor, Mr. Oswald Aisat Igau and Dr. Amran Harun for their keen interest and assistance throughout this project paper. Your wisdom to patiently guide me has made this work possible. Special thanks to the lecturers who taught me in the master degree program for all their tolerance and commitment through the semesters.

My sincere recognition and thanks to the individuals who have participated in this study. I wish to acknowledge everyone who gave their time and assistance in anyway, directly or indirectly during the course of my study.

I am most grateful to my beloved parents, Hj. Neezm Abdullah and Hjh. Siti Noidah Bt. Abdullah Hassanat, and my siblings who offered unconditional love, encouragement, support, and their contribution that sustained me throughout the study.



ABSTRACT

THE DETERMINANT OF BRAND LOYALTY AND THE MEDIATING EFFECT OF CUSTOMERS' SATISFACTION: IN MOBILE PHONE CONTEXT

This dissertation reports the results of the study focused on describing and understanding the determinant of brand loyalty and the mediating effect of customers' satisfaction in purchasing mobile phones. The researcher seeks to contribute to the development of a conceptual framework that integrates perceived value, trust, perceived product quality, personal interaction, customer satisfaction and brand loyalty. The study was carried out among private sector and government sector employees in Kota Kinabalu area. For the purpose of this research, the researcher used questionnaire as the main research instrument. Quantitative data obtained were being treated using Statistical Package for Social Research (SPSS) version 16.0 for analysis and summarization purposes. A comprehensive literature review was conducted to form the conceptual framework which guided the study. The results of this study found there is a significant relationship between trust and perceived product quality on brand loyalty. However, perceived value and personal interaction was found to be insignificant related to brand loyalty. Customer satisfaction partially mediates the relationship between trust and brand loyalty, and fully mediates the relationship between perceived product quality and brand loyalty. It is hoped that this research provides implications for differentiated marketing strategies in pursuit to strengthen customers' satisfaction and consequent lovalty towards a brand.



ABSTRAK

Fokus disertasi ini adalah untuk melaporkan hasil kajian yang menerangkan dan memberi kefahaman mengenai penentu kesetiaan terhadap sesuatu jenama telefon dan kesan kepuasan pelanggan dalam konteks telefon bimbit. Penyelidik berharap dapat menyumbangkan kepada pemebentukan rangka kajian yang mengintegrasi korelasi di antara tanggapan nilai, kepercayaan, tanggapan kualiti produk, interaksi peribadi, kepuasan pelanggan dan kesetiaan ienama dalam pembelian telefon bimbit. Kajian ini dilakukan terhadap pekerja yang berkhidmat di dalam sektor kerajaan dan swasta di sekitar kawasan Kota Kinabalu dengan mengaplikasikan teknik kajian secara rawak. Untuk tujuan kajian ini, borang soal selidik digunakan sebagai instrumen kaijan. Data kuantitatif di analisa dan di simpulkan menggunakan pakej SPSS versi 16.0. Seterusnya, rangka kajian dibentuk agar dapat menjadi panduan kepada keseluruhan kajian. Hasil kajian mendapati bahawa terdapat perhubungan signifikan di antara kepercayaan dan tanggapan kualiti produk terhadap kesetiaan jenama. Walau bagaimanapun, didapati bahawa tanggapan nilai dan interaksi peribadi tidak mempunyai perhubungan signifikan terhadap kesetiaan jenama. Telah juga didapati bahawa kepuasaan pelanggan mempengaruhi sebahagian kepercayaan terhadap kesetiaan jenama manakala mempengaruhi sepenuhnya tanggapan kualiti produk terhadap kesetiaan jenama. Adalah diharapkan kajian ini akan memberi implikasi untuk membentuk pelbagai strategi pemasaran agar dapat dipraktikkan untuk mengukuhkan lagi kepuasaan pelanggan seterusnya meningkatkan kesetiaan mereka terhadap penggunaan suatu jenama.



TABLE OF CONTENTS

CERTACK! ABSTABSTABL LIST	E LARATION TIFICATION NOWLEDGEMENT TRACT TRAK LE OF CONTENTS OF APPENDIX OF TABLES OF FIGURES	ii iii iv v vi viii x xi xi
CHAI	PTER 1: INTRODUCTION	
11	Overview	1
1.1	Issues and Rational of study	1
1.2	Brief profile of mobile phone market	2
1.3	Statements of the Problems	2 3 4
1.4	Objectives of the Study	
1.5	Significance of the Study	4
1.6	Expected Benefits	6
1.7	Scope of Study	6
1.8	Definition of Key Variables and Dimensions	6
	1.8.1 Brand Loyalty	6 7
	1.8.2 Perceived Value	7
	1.8.3 Trust	7
	1.8.4 Perceived Product Quality	7
	1.8.5 Personal Interaction	8
1.0	1.8.6 Customer Satisfaction	8 9
1.9	Summary	9
	PTER 2: LITERATURE REVIEW	10
2.0	Introduction	10 10
2.1	Brand Loyalty Perceived Value	12
2.2	Trust	15
2.4	Perceived Product Quality	16
2.5	Personal Interaction	17
2.6	Customer Satisfaction	19
2.7	Relationship of the Variables	23
2.8	Summary	24
CHA	PTER 3: RESEARCH METHODOLOGY	
3.0	Introduction	25
3.1	Conceptual Framework	25
3.2	Research Hypotheses	27
3.3	Research Design	28
3.4	Sampling Design	28



3.5 3.6 3.7 3.8	Instrument Development of Test Measures Data Collection and Analysis Summary	29 29 33 33
CHAD	TER 4: FINDINGS	
4.0	Introduction	34
4.1	Profile of respondents	35
4.2	Analysis of Measures	37
	4.2.1 Factor Analysis	37
	a. Factor Analysis for Perceived Value	38
	b. Factor Analysis for Trust	39
	c. Factor Analysis for Perceived Product Quality	40
	d. Factor Analysis for Personal Interaction	42 43
	e. Factor Analysis for Customer Satisfactionf. Factor Analysis for Brand Loyalty	45
	4.2.2 Reliability of Major Variables	46
	4.2.3 Descriptive Distribution	47
	4.2.4 Correlation Analysis	48
	4.2.5 Hypotheses Testing	
	a. Independent Variables as predictor To Brand Loyalty	
	(To test H1- H4)	49
	b. Independent Variables as predictor To Brand Loyalty	
	(To test H5 – H8)	50
	c. Customer Satisfaction as predictor To Brand Loyalty	F2
	(To test H9) 4.2.6 Hierarchical Regression	52 53
	4.2.7 Summary of Results	55
4.3	Summary	56
1.5	Summary	30
CHAP	TER 5: DISCUSSION & CONCLUSION	
5.0	Introduction	57
5.1	Recapitulation of the Study	57
5.2	Implications	58
	5.2.1 Perceived Value	58
	5.2.2 Trust	58
	5.2.3 Perceived Product Quality5.2.4 Personal Interaction	59
	5.2.5 Customer Satisfaction	60 60
	5.2.6 Brand Loyalty	61
	5.2.7 Implications to Practice	61
	5.2.8 Implications to Customer	62
5.3	Limitations of Study	63
5.4	Suggestions for Future Research	64
5.5	Conclusion	65
DECE	DENCES	
APPE	RENCES NDIX	66



LIST OF APPENDIX

	Questionnaire	76
Appendix A	Respondents' profile	84
Appendix B	Factor analysis	86
Appendix C	Reliability test	105
Appendix D	Descriptive statistics	108
Appendix E	Correlations	109
Appendix F	Regression analysis	110



LIST OF TABLES

Table 1	The global mobile phone sales volume	5
Table 2	Relationship between perceived value, trust, perceived	
	product quality, customer satisfaction, and brand loyalty	23
Table 3	Summary of statistical methods for hypotheses testing	33
Table 4.1	Profile of respondents	35
Table 4.2	Respondents' gross income	36
Table 4.3	Respondents' age	36
Table 4.4	Model summary of factor analysis for perœived value	38
Table 4.5	Model summary of factor analysis for trust	39
Table 4.6	Model summary of factor analysis for perceived product quality	40
Table 4.7	Model summary of factor analysis for personal interaction	42
Table 4.8	Model summary of factor Analysis for customer satisfaction	43
Table 4.9	Model summary of factor analysis for brand loyalty	45
Table 5.0	Reliability test	46
Table 5.1	Descriptive distribution	47
Table 5.2	Correlations	48
Table 5.3	Model summary for independent variables as predictor to brand	40
Table E 4	loyalty	49
Table 5.4	Coefficients for independent variables as predictor to brand loyalty	49
Table 5.5	Model summary for independent variables as predictor to	כד
Table 3.5	customer satisfaction	50
Table 5.6	Coefficients for independent variables as predictor to customer	
	satisfaction	51
Table 5.7	Model summary for customer satisfaction as predictor to brand	
	loyalty	52
Table 5.8	Coefficients for customer satisfaction as predictor to brand	
	loyalty	52
Table 5.9	The hierarchical regression on mediating effect of trust and	
	perceived product quality on the relationship between	F.4
T. I. C.O.	customer satisfaction and brand loyalty	54
Table 6.0	Result table for the tested hynotheses	55





CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.0 Overview

The issues and rational of study, brief profile of mobile phone market, statements of the problems, objectives of the study, significance of the study, scope of study and definition of key variables and dimensions are outlined in this chapter.

1.1 Issues and rational of study

The Malaysian Ministry of Energy, Water and Communications in his speech during World Telecommunication Day celebrated on May 17 annually briefed that Malaysia is aiming towards developing an information rich-society, Brief Industry Trends Report (2009). The Minister has also noted that since the internet connection emerged, Malaysia recorded growth in mobile phone subscription. In line with this, the Malaysian Government introduced a blueprint specifically to cater continuous delivery of advanced information, communication and multimedia services towards improving the quality life of Malaysians.

In addition, the Malaysian Government will also continue its effort to ensure that all Malaysians have equal access of ICT facilities, Brief Industry Trends Report (2009). The nation is becoming more dependent on numerous ICT equipment such as the mobile phone and soon will be a necessity aspect in life. The Government, State Government, Government agencies, NGO's and private sectors to bridge the digital gap to ensure all programmes runs smoothly and benefit the rural community as well.

Our lifestyle and business today are enriched with mobile phone services. Such services are quickly becoming entrenched in Malaysia. The development of mobile services and other related ICT equipments in turn can bring about business and public sector improvements, increase national competitiveness and sustain economic growth (Suki, 2007).



1.2 Brief profile of mobile phone market

Mobile communication today is widely used and equipped with much functionality. According to The Star dated 21st July 2007, the number of mobile phone subscribers has risen to 19.464 million as of year ended 2006 vs. 5.122 million in year 2000. Mobile phone subscribers are expected to reach 24.4 million by year 2010. Furthermore, mobile phone penetration rate per 100 population was recorded at 72.3% as of year ended 2006 vs. 21.8% in year 2000. It is expected to trend higher to 85% by 2010, driven by convenience, affordability and in keeping with changing lifestyles.

According to the Malaysian Communications and Multimedia Commission's (MCMC) Hand Phone Users Survey 2005, as of 31 May 2005, there were 16.2 million hand phone subscriptions on the five digital networks operating in Malaysia. Further to this, in the first quarter of 2006, the number increased to 20.5 million, indicating a growth of 5.3 per cent and 77.7 per cent penetration rate nationwide.

As noted by Lee (2006) more than two million hand phone users in Malaysia were young adults between the age 20 and 49 years of age. This shows that teenagers and adults dominate the Malaysian mobile technologies market. From the overview, mobile content is an interesting platform to disseminate information and communication. Mobile content could prompt new changes, patterns for knowledge discovery especially in the field of mobile learning and edutainment (Suki, 2007).

1.3 Statement of the Problems

In today's modern society, consumerism has become an essential part in life. The society is changing whereby human values have a different measure whereby you are known by what you have not by what you are. This culture causes people to live a life whereby everyone wants to have a unique place in the society by purchasing things which sets them apart from the rest. Consumers are now are becoming deeply connected to the brands.



Sometimes customers purchase specific branded things just because of the brand name. There is a need to identify how brand should be chosen and to what extent is the brand name important. Another aspect is to find out how the brand name has a place in the consumers' minds. Consumer confusion is increasing due to rapid technology changes and evolving competition. With the wide range of brands, production, services and distribution of mobile phones, consumers become more homogenous and it may impede their decision making process, (Aksu, 2006). Consumer behaviour in purchasing mobile phones varies and might or might not contribute to brand loyalty, Reinartz and Kumar (2002).

It is not known on how much information customers need and seek on the product and do they rely and believe in this information before they proceed with a purchasing decision. Companies begin to put more efforts and money to creating brand awareness of their product. The issue arises if such actions really affect the purchasing decision of the consumer. Another issue is whether other attributes such as perceived value, trust, perceived product quality and personal interaction create some degree of influence in customer satisfaction and subsequently brand loyalty.

Another factor of consideration is the level of brand consciousness among consumers. This varies and might or might not contribute to the reasons whereby certain brands are chosen over other brands which are new or not so known in the mobile phone market. This view may cause them to only use a certain brand and unwilling to switch brands and expand their choices (Shukla, 2009). Most of the time, developing overall customer satisfaction hence promoting long term loyalty is critical in the mobile phone context, (Vesel and Zabkar, 2009). While studying the literature, this study tries to answers the following questions:

- 1. Does perceived value, trust, perceived product quality and personal interaction influence customer satisfaction?
- Does customer satisfaction mediate the relationship among perceived value, trust, perceived product quality and personal interaction towards brand loyalty?



1.4 Objectives of the Study

This study seeks to contribute to the development of a conceptual framework that integrate perceived value, trust, perceived product quality, personal interaction, customer satisfaction and brand loyalty. Hence, the research objectives are:

- To investigate the determinants of perceived value, trust, perceived product quality and personal interaction and which is more significantly affecting customer satisfaction.
- To test customer satisfaction as a crucial mediating role in the relationship of perceived value, trust, perceived product quality and personal interaction to brand loyalty.

1.5 Significance of the Study

The purpose of the study is to examine the determinants of customer satisfaction and the loyalty intentions for mobile phones. In today's mobile phone market, companies are facing wider range of competitors who offer similar product to same customers. The demand of mobile phone continues to increase and has turned out to be a fashionable product (Suki, 2007).

Global volume of handsets is expected to come in at 1.177 billion for 2009, a 3.7% decline over 2008, however is forecasted to grow by 7% in 2010 thanks to an increase in consumer demand (Forbes.com). The Malaysian telecommunications industry is also expected to rebound strongly, with a growth of 4.4 per cent over 2009 while reaching a total of US\$6.7 billion for the year (Business Times article, 2010).



Table 1: The global mobile phone sales volume

Commons	Year 2008		Year 2007	
Company	Sales	%	Sales	%
Nokia	115,191.80	39	92,048.10	35.5
Samsung	42,396.50	14	32,099.80	12.4
Motorola	29,884.70	10	47,620.70	18.4
LG	23,645.80	8	16,009.30	6.2
Sony Ericsson	22,061.00	8	21,771.50	8.4
Others	61,103.20	21	49,489.90	19.1
TOTAL	294,283.00	100	259,039.30	100

Source: Gartner Dataquest, May 2008

As shown in table 1 above, Nokia mobile phone brand gains the highest sales volume in the global mobile phone business. This shows the continuous growth in the mobile phone market every year. Most of the other international phones are showing the same trend of business. The sales volume in Asia Pacific also showed the sign of increase due to the strong growth potential of China and India business trend. It is expected that the annual growth rate of the mobile phone users in Asia Pacific will account for 47.9% of the global subscribers by 2011 (Taiwan's Market Intelligence Center: IMC).

In Malaysia, by 2008, there were over 97 per cent of the population own or have access to mobile phone device (Business Times.com) According to Gartner research, Malaysia, a country of 27 million people, ranks sixth in the world in total SMS volume generation, behind China, the Philippines, Japan, Indonesia and India. About 50 billion SMS's were generated in Malaysia alone last year, a huge portion of this coming from the younger cross section of the population.



1.6 Expected Benefits

- To know the brand loyalty status of the mobile phone users in the market.
 This helps in providing the guideline to the marketers, business owners and people who do the mobile phone business.
- 2. To understand the relationship between customer satisfaction and brand loyalty in order to plan effective marketing activities, strategies to meet and match consumers' perception hence increase the brand loyalty of a brand.

1.7 Scope of Study

The scope of study focuses on the mobile phone users in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah. Currently, the mobile phone in the local market is dominated by international brands such as Nokia, Sony Erricson, Samsung, LG and others. To complete the objectives of the dissertation, the researcher will survey the questionnaire to the public and private sector employees in Kota Kinabalu, Sabah.

1.8 Definition of Key Variables and Dimensions Used

The key variables and dimensions used in this study have specific meaning and such definitions in general context are as follows:

1.8.1 Brand Loyalty

In general terms, loyalty is something that customers may exhibit to brands, services, stores, and product categories. In this study, the researcher uses the term brand loyalty to emphasize that loyalty is a future of something inherent in brands. Consumers often use the terms "product" and "brand" interchangeably (Myers, 2003).

To distinguish between the terms, Farquhar (1989) and Cobb-Walgren (1995) addresses product as something that tends to offer a functional benefit, whereas a brand is a name, symbol, design or mark that enhances the value of a particular product. Similarly, Bennett (1988) defined brand as a name, term, design, symbol or any other feature that identifies one seller's good or service as distinct from those of other sellers.



Oliver (1999) defined brand loyalty as a strong commitment to rebuy or repatronize a preferred product or repatronize a service consistently in the future, thereby causing repetitive same-brand or same-brand set purchasing, despite situational influences and marketing efforts having the potential to cause switching behaviors. Further this, Oliver suggests that ultimate customer loyalty is a function of perceived product superiority, personal fortitude, social bonding, and their synergistic effects.

1.8.2 Perceived value

Taylor, Celuch and Goodwin (2004) stated that companies have to work hard to have any added value. Customer delivered value can be defined as the total value offered to a customer less the total cost to the customer, Zineldin (2000) and Gro"nroos (2000).

Oliver (1999) asserts that value is indeed a unique construct from satisfaction and quality. Value is at the heart of what consumers pursue from a marketing exchange. One of the more commonly cited definitions is that supplied by Zeithaml (1988), who defined value as the consumer's overall assessment of the utility of a product based on perceptions of what is received and what is given.

1.8.3 Trust

Gundlach and Murphy (1993) stated that trust is the most universally accepted basis of any human interaction or exchange. More recently, trust has been defined as an individual's confidence in another's conduct, when the individual is in a position of vulnerability or cannot monitor or control the other party (Hosmer, 1995).

1.8.4 Perceived Product Quality

Churchill and Surprenant (1982) defined quality as belief statements or attribute performance. Meanwhile, perceived quality is defined as the consumers' judgment about an entity's (service's) overall excellence or superiority, Zeithaml (1987) and Rowley (1998).



Anderson et al. (1994) noted that quality as a significant predictor of customer satisfaction and that this relationship, over the long term, was an important predictor of superior economic returns through repeat sales. Perceived quality of a product or service is related to but not the same as satisfaction resulting from comparison of expectations with a perception of performance (Rowley, 1998).

1.8.5 Personal Interaction

Interactions occur between the customer and service contact personnel, the service place environment and other customers (Cassab and MacLachlan, 2006). Bowman and Narayandas (2001) demonstrated the importance of distributional, interactional, and procedural fairness to satisfaction following a customer-firm interaction.

They found that loyal customers valued interactions such as inquiry and contact with the customer service center more than reward itself. According to Bowman and Narayandas (2001), empathy and sincerity are usually associated with the value perceptions of loyal customers because they contribute toward building the sense of interactive fairness.

1.8.6 Customer satisfaction

Satisfaction is defined as an emotional post-consumption response that may occur as the result of comparing expected and actual performance (disconfirmation), or it can be an outcome that occurs without comparing expectations (Oliver, 1999). This definition is rooted in the disconfirmation paradigm, which suggests that satisfaction judgments are formed in a process of comparison of perceived performance with pre-experience expectations. Hence, satisfaction is said to result from positive disconfirmation. (Product performances are greater than that initially expected).

Customer satisfaction can also be defined using the transaction-specific perspective or cumulative perspective (Boulding et al., 1993). The transaction-specific perspective indicates that customer satisfaction is the evaluation based on



the recent purchase experiences. Compared with the transaction-specific perspective, the cumulative perspective stresses overall evaluations, indicating that evaluations of customer satisfaction should be based on all the purchase experiences of the customer, disregarding any specific purchase experience (Johnson and Fornell, 1991).

1.9 Summary

This dissertation comprise of five chapters. In the fist chapter, it discusses on the introduction of the present study which consists of the issues and rational of the study, brief introduction of the mobile phone market, statements of the problems, objectives of the study, scope of the study, definition of key variables and dimensions. Chapter 2 will provide the literature related to the topic of this study. The conceptual framework and research methodology of the study are discussed in chapter 3. Chapter 4 provides the result of the statistical tests while chapter 5 will discuss on the findings of this study for future research and conclusion drawn from this study.



CHAPTER 2

LITERATURE REVIEW

2.0 Introduction

This chapter will discuss on the review of past studies related to all variables studied. Discussions of literature reviews include brand loyalty, brand equity factors, and customer satisfaction.

2.1 Brand Loyalty

Brands play an important role in the consumer decision process due to their presence in a huge diversity of products (Duarte and Raposo, 2010). The main purposes of brands are to differentiate sellers' offers is a sign of guarantee for consumers. Brands are composed of many different elements, both tangible and intangible (Keller, 2003).

Aksu (2006) suggests when loyalty was examined from the establishments operating in both retail and service sector, it can easily be seen that loyal customers prefer goods and services from the establishments that have positive influence on them. Aksu (2006) further suggest changing of customer preferences and though competition among rivals forced managers to change their marketing strategies.

Other recent literature by Ariely and Carmon (2000) noted that a crucial part of the purchasing experience occurs at the end of the purchase process, when critical factors influence one's likelihood of returning to the same retailer or service provider. This argument would mean that the fulfillment aspects of the purchase process might play a greater role rather than the level of information provided or the amount of choice that is available to the consumer.



Reinartz and Kumar (2002) found little or no evidence to suggest that customers who purchase steadily from a company over time are necessarily cheaper to serve, less price sensitive, or particularly effective at bringing in new businesses. A review of the loyalty literature demonstrates that, first, the majority of research focuses on consumers. Business to business (B2B) investigations are relatively few in number, and are also much more limited than the extensive Business to consumer (B2C) literature in context and scope. Researchers such as Grewal and Levy (2007) and Runyan and Droge (2008) have noted this gap.

Furthermore, according to Taylor, Celuch and Goodwin (2004), within marketing aspect, loyalty can be spread across more than one brand. Consumers can, in effect, be loyal to a portfolio of brands across product categories, selecting from this portfolio at each purchase occasion. This a different approach from the situation where we assume that it is possible to secure an irrational and exclusive loyalty from a given customer whereby there may be some customers willing to act in this way, but most of us, as consumers, spread our business around (unless we have no choice).

Loyalty has been largely treated by researchers as either repurchase behaviour or repurchases behaviour combined with an attitudinal component. The problems was associated with treating loyalty as repurchase behaviour exclusively because measures do not distinguish loyal customers (Moulson, 1965). By referring to purchase, shoppers who are retained customers by default are aggregated with truly loyal customers who shop as a positive choice (Denison and Knox, 1995).

Normally, customers are retained for long periods but without a genuine relationship ever being developed. The relationship building between customers and service or goods provider produces a sense of ownership over the service with customers (Grabbott and Hogg, 1994). Hence, loyal customers need to be seen as acting out of volition in making their preferred choice (Barnes, 1997).



Reichheld (2003) has recently argued that it is possible for firms to adequately assess loyalty using only one measure. That is "willingness to recommend". It was reported that for many of the firms studied, this one indicator of loyalty was a strong predictor of a firms' growth rate. In essence, these results imply a uni-dimensional conceptualization of loyalty.

This study is supported by definition on brand loyalty by Oliver (1999). The current study is also based on literatures by several authors such as Duarte and Raposo (2010), Yoo, Donthu and Lee (2000), Aksu (2006), Keller (2003) and others. Based on all the facts and results of the prior studies, the researcher believes that in the current environment, specifically in mobile phone context, the brand does play a role in consumer decision making.

Owning a mobile phone is a concern and necessity among consumers plus making sure they buy the right mobile phone of the right brand. This trend captures the researcher's interest to include brand loyalty as the dependent variable of the study.

2.2 Perceived Value

Customer's perceived value can be viewed from the perspectives of money, quality, benefit, and social psychology (Ying, Chi and Wei, 2009). Normally, from monetary aspect value is said to be generated when less is paid for goods (Bishop, 1984). According to Reichheld (1996), what keeps a customer loyal is the value they receive and one of the reasons so many businesses fail is that too much of their learning revolves around profit and too little around value creation.

In particular, some marketing academics have assumed that value and values are the same concept, despite the fact that they are clearly distinct. Value is the outcome of an evaluative judgment, whereas the term values refers to the standards, rules, criteria, norms, goals, or ideals that serve as the basis for such an evaluative judgment (Holbrook, 1999). Value implies a 'trade-off' between benefits and sacrifices.



According to Lin and Wang (2006) literature relating to service management has argued that customer satisfaction is the result of a customer's perception of value received. Perceived value is considered a construct that captures any benefit-sacrifice discrepancy in the same way that disconfirmation does for variations between expectations and perceived performance.

However, in the present study, perceived value is a complex construct that involves more than just a mere rational assessment of utility itself, Tellis and Gaeth (1990). Woodruff and Gardial (1996) suggested although price is usually understood as the monetary value of a product, a full appreciation of the concept also includes considerations of the time, effort and search involved in the overall cost or sacrifice made by the customer in the consumption experience. It is thus apparent that perceived value is a broader and richer construct than a mere tradeoff between utility and price, Monroe (1990) and Zeithaml (1988).

In respect to the role of quality in perceived value, most of the extant literature agrees that value and quality are distinct constructs, Day and Crask (2000). Several authors such as Oliver (1999) and Zeithaml (1988) have also noted the conceptual confusion that often exists between the terms. The conceptual confusion arises because the two constructs share certain common characteristics, especially the fact that both involve evaluative judgments that are subjective, personal, and context-dependent, Rust and Oliver (1994) and Zeithaml (1988). Nevertheless, most authors agree that there are certainly differences between them, e:g: Zeithaml (1988), although opinion differs as to the relationship between the constructs.

Product of specific brand adds value to the firm in two ways: it first attracts new customers by developing and focusing awareness and recognition, but then also serves as a reminder to current customers to think about the firm, and to do so favorably, Rust et al. (2000).



REFERENCES

- Aaker, D.A. 1991. Managing Brand Equity, Macmillan, New York.
- Aksu, A. 2006. Gap Analysis in Customer Loyalty: A research in 5-stars Hotel in the Antalya Region of Turkey. Quality and quantity, 188-189.
- Anderson, E.W., Fornell, C. and Lehmann, D.R. 1994. Customer satisfaction, market share, and profitability: findings from Sweden, *Journal of Marketing*, **58**(3): 53-66.
- Ariely, D. And Z. Carmon. 2000. Gestalt Characteristics of Experiences: The Defining Features of Summarized Events, *Journal of Behavioral Decision Making*, 191-201.
- Athanassopoulus, A.D. 2000. Customer satisfaction cues to support market segmentation and explain switching behaviour, *Journal of Business Research*, **47**:191-207.
- Aurier, P. and Goala, G.N. 2009. The Differing and Mediating Roles of Trust and Relationship Maintenance and Development, *Journal of The Academic Marketing Science*, 5-10.
- Aydin, S. and Ozer G. 2004. The analysis of antecedents of customer loyalty in the Turkish mobile communication market, *European Journal of Marketing*, 911-915.
- Babin B.J, Darden W.R, and Griffin M. 1994. Work and/or fun? Measuring hedonic and utilitarian shopping value, *Journal of Consumer Research*, **20**(4):644–656.
- Baker, J., Levy, M. and Grewal, D. 1992. An experimental approach to making retail store environment decisions, *Journal of Retailing*, **68**(4):445-460.
- Ballester, M. E. D., & Alem an, J. L. M. 2005. Construction from an index using indicadores formativos. *Investigation and Marketing*, **75**:16–20.
- Baron, R.M., and Kenny, D.A., 1986. The Moderator-Mediator Variable Distinction in Social Psychological Research: Conceptual Strategic & Statistical Considerations, Journal of Personality and Social Psychology, 51(6):1173-1182.
- Barnes, J.G. 1997, Closeness, Strength, and Satisfaction; Examining the Nature of Relationships between Providers of Financial Services and Their Retail Customers, *Journal of Psychology and Marketing*, **14**(8):765-90.
- Bennett, P.D. 1988. *Dictionary of Marketing Terms*, The American Marketing Association, Chicago, 18.



- Bennett, R., and Rundle-Thiele, S., 2004. Customer satisfaction should not be the only goal, *Journal of Services Marketing*, **18**(7):514–523.
- Bennett, R., McColl-Kennedy, J.R., & Coote, L.V., 2007. Involvement, satisfaction, and brand loyalty in a small business services setting, *Journal of Business Research*, **60**(12):1253-1260.
- Berry L.L. and Parasuraman, A. 1991. *Marketing Services Competing through quality*, Free Press, Macmillan, New York.
- Berry, L.L. 1995. On Great Service, Free Press, New York.
- Bishop, W. R. Jr., 1984. Competitive intelligence. Progressive Grocer, 63(3):19-20.
- Bolton, R.N. and Drew, J.H. 1991. A Multistage Model of Customers' Assessments of Service Quality and Value, *Journal of Consumer Research*, **17**(4):375–84.
- Boulding, W., Kalra, A., Richard, S., and Zeithaml, V. A. 1993. A dynamic process model of service quality: From expectations to behavioral intentions, *Journal of Marketing Research*, **30**(1):7–27.
- Bowman, Narayandas, D., 2001. Managing consumer-Initiated Contact With Manufacturers: The Impact of Share of Category Requirements and Word-of-Mouth Behaviour, *Journal of Marketing Research*, 281-297.
- Brady, M.K. Cronin, J.J., and Hult, T.M.G. 2000. Assessing the effects of quality, value, and customer satisfaction on consumer behavioral intentions in service encounters, *Journal of Retailing*, **76**(2):193-218.
- Cassab, H. and Maclachlan, D.L. 2006. Interaction fluency: a customer performance measure of multi channel service, *International Journal of Productivity and Performance Mnanagement*, 557-559.
- Caruana, A., Money, A.H. and Berthon, P.R. 2000. Service quality and satisfaction-the moderating role of value, *European Journal of Marketing*, **34**:1338-1352.
- Chaudhuri, Arjun, & Holbrook, Morris B. 2001. The chain of effects from brand trust and brand affect to brand performance: The role of brand loyalty, *Journal of Marketing*, **65**:81–93.
- Churchill, Gilbert A., Jr. and Carol Surprenant. 1982. An Investigation Into the Determinants of Customer Satisfaction?, *Journal of Marketing Research*, 491-504.
- Clow, K.E., Tripp, C. and Kenny, J.T. 1996. The Importance of Service Quality Determinants in Advertising a Professional Service: An Exploratory Study, *Journal of Services Marketing*, **10**(2):59-74.



- Cobb-Walgren, 1995. Brand equity, brand preference, and purchase intent, *Journal of Advertising*, **24**(3):25-40.
- Cronin, J.J. and Taylor, S.A. 1994. SERVPREF versus SERVQUAL: Reconciling Performance-based and Perceptions-minus-Expectations Measurement of Service Quality, *Journal of Marketing*, **58**(1):123-131.
- Dall'Olmo Riley, F., de Chernatony, L., 2000. The service brand as relationships builder, *British Journal of Management*, **11**(2):137–150.
- Day, E. and Crask, M.R. 2000. Value Assessment: The Antecedent of Customer Satisfaction, *Journal of Consumer Satisfaction, Dissatisfaction and Complaining Behavior*, **13**:52–60.
- Delgado, E., Munuera, J.L. and Yagu, M.J. 2003. Development and validation of a brand trust scale, *International Journal of Market Research*, **45**(1):35-54.
- Denison, T.J. and Knox, S. 1995. Loyal by Default or by Design? A Study Profiling Loyal Shoppers, *Paper presented at 2nd Recent Advances in Retailing and Services Science Conference*, EIRASS, Gold Coast.
- Doney, P. and Cannon, J.P. 1997. An examination of the nature of trust in buyer seller relationships, *Journal of Marketing*, **61**:35-51.
- Duarte, P.A. and Raposo, M.L 2010. A PLS Model to study brand preference: An application to mobile phone market, *Handbook of Partial Least Squares, Springer Handbooks of Conceptual Statistics*, Springer-Verlag Berlin Heidelberg, 450-454.
- Dwyer, E Robert, Paul H. Schurr, and Sejo Oh. 1987. Developing Buyer-Seller Relationships, *Journal of Marketing*, **51**:11-27.
- Farquhar, J.D. 1989. Managing Brand Equity, Journal of Marketing Research, 1:24-33.
- Gabbott, M. and Hogg, G. 1994. Consumer Behaviour and Services, A Review, Journal of Marketing Management, **10**:311-324.
- Ganesan, S. 1994. Determinants of long-term orientation in buyer-seller relationships, *Journal of Marketing*, **58**:1-19.
- Garbarino, E. and Johnson, M.S. 1999. The different roles of satisfaction, trust, and commitment in customer relationships, *Journal of Marketing*, **63**:70-87.
- Gefen, D. 2002. Customer loyalty in e-commerce, *Journal of the Association for Information Systems*, **3**(1):27–51.



- Geyskens, I., Steenkamp, J.-B.E.M., Scheer, L.K. and Kumar, N. 1996. The effects of trust and interdependence on relationship commitment: a trans-Atlantic study, *International Journal of Research in Marketing*, **13**(4):303-17.
- Gilliland, D., Bello, D., 2002. Two sides to attitudinal commitment: The effect of calculative and loyalty commitment on enforcement mechanisms in distribution channels, *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, **30**(1):24–43.
- Goldzimmer, L.S. 1990. Customer Driven, Hutchison Business Books Ltd, London.
- Grewal, D., & Levy, M. 2007. Retailing research: Past, present, and future, *Journal of Retailing*, **83**(4):447–464.
- Gronroos, C. 1993. Towards a third phase in service quality research: challenges and future directions, in Swartz, T., Bowen, D. and Bowen, S. (Eds.), *Advances in Service Marketing and Management: Research and Practice,* **2:**100-134.
- Gro "nroos, C. 2000. Service Management and Marketing: A Customer Relationship Management Approach, Wiley:New York.
- Gro"nroos, C., 2001. Service Management and Marketing, Wiley:New York
- Grover, Rajiv and V Srinivasan. 1992. Evaluating the Multiple Effects of Retail Promotions on Brand-Loyal and Brand-Switching Segments, *Journal of Marketing Research*, 76-89.
- Gundlach, Gregory T., & Murphy, Patrick E. 1993. Ethical and legal foundations of relational marketing exchanges. *Journal of Marketing*, 35–46.
- Harvey, J. 1998. Service quality: A tutorial. *Journal of Operations Management*, **16**(5):583–597.
- Hellier, P., Geursen, G., Carr, R. and Rickard, J. 2003. Customer repurchase intention: A general structural equation model, *European Journal of Marketing*, **37**(11): 1762-1800.
- Heskett, J., Jones, T., Lovemer, G., Sasser, W., Schlesinger, L., 1994. *Putting the Service-Profit Chain to work*. Harvard Business Review, 164-171.
- Heskett, J.L., Sasser, W.E. Jr and Schlesinger, L.A. 1997. *The Service Profit Chain*, Free Press, New York, NY.
- Holbrook, M.B. 1999. Introduction to Consumer Value, in M.B. Holbrook (ed.) Consumer Value. A Framework for Analysis and Research, London:Routledge. 1–28.
- Hosmer, L. T. 1995. Trust: the connecting link between organizational theory and philosophical ethics. *Academy of Management Review*, **20**(2):379–403.



- IT Digest Column, Thairath Newspaper, 2006.
- Jancic, Z., & Zabkar, V. 2002. Impersonal vs. personal exchanges in marketing relationships. *Journal of Marketing Management*, **18**(8):657–671.
- Johnson, M. D., & Fornell, C. 1991. A framework for comparing customer satisfaction across individuals and product categories, *Journal of Economic Psychology*, 12(2):267–286.
- Keller, K. L. 2003. *Strategic brand management building, measuring and managing brand equity,* New Jersey: Prentice Hall.
- Khalifa, A.S. 2004. Customer Value: A Review of Recent Literature and an Integrative Configuration, *Management Decision*, **42**(6):645–666.
- Krishnan, H.S. 1996. Characteristics of memory associations: a consumer-based brand equity perspective, *International Journal of Research in Marketing*, **13**:389-405.
- Kristensen, K. Martensen, A. and Gronhold, L. 1999. Measuring the impact of buying behaviour on customer satisfaction, *Journal of Total Quality Management*, **10**(4):602-614.
- Kumar, P. 2002. The impact of performance, cost, and competitive considerations on the relationship between satisfaction and repurchase intent in business markets, *Journal of Service Research*, **5**(1):55-68.
- Kuo, Y. F. 2003. A study on service quality of community websites. *Total Quality Management and Business Excellence*, **14**(4):461–473.
- Lapierre, J. 2000. Customer-Perceived Value in Industrial Contexts, *The Journal of Business & Industrial Marketing*, **15**(3):122–140.
- Lee, M. K. O., & Turban, E. 2006. A trust model for consumer Internet shopping, *International Journal of Electronic Commerce*, **6**(1):75–91.
- Lien, T.B. and Yu C.C. 2006. The determinants of customer loyalty: An analysis of intangible factors, *International Journal of Consumer Marketing*, **16**:162-165.
- Lindgreen, A. and Wynstra, F. 2005. Value in Business Markets: What Do We Know? Where Are We Going?, *Industrial Marketing Management*, **34**(7):732–748.
- Luarn, P., & Lin, H.-H. 2003. A customer loyalty model for e-service context, *Journal of Electronic Commerce Research*, **4**(4):156–167.
- Malaysian Communications and Multimedia Commission, 2009. *Brief Industry Trend Report*, 2-10.



- Malaysian Communications and Multimedia Commission. 2005. *Industry performance report*, Facts and figures, 1-10.
- McKnight, D. H.,& Chervany, N. L. 2002. What trust means in e-commerce customer relationships: An inter displinary conceptual typology, *International Journal of Electronic Commerce*, **6**(2):35–59.
- Mittal, V., Ross, W., & Baldasare, P. 1998. The asymmetric impact of negative and positive attribute-level performance on overall satisfaction and repurchase intentions, *Journal of Marketing*, **61**(1):33–47.
- Mittal, B., and Lassar, W. M. 1998. Why Do Customers Switch? The Dynamics of Satisfaction versus Loyalty, *The Journal of Services Marketing*, **12**(3):177-194.
- Mittal, B. and Kamakura, W.A. 2001. Satisfaction, repurchase intent, and repurchase behavior: investigating the moderating effect of customer characteristics, *Journal of Marketing Research*, 131-42.
- Molly Inhofe Rapert & Brent M. Wren. 1998. Service Quality as A Competitive Opportunity, *The Journal of Services Marketing*, **12**(3):223-235.
- Monroe, K.B. 1990. Pricing: Making Profitable Decisions. New York: McGraw-Hill.
- Morgan, Robert M. and Shelby D. Hunt. 1994. The Commitment-Trust Theory of Relationship Marketing?, *Journal of Marketing*, 20-38.
- Moulson, T.J. 1965. Danger Signals: How to Spot Erosion in Brand Loyalty, *Printer's Ink*, 55-61.
- Myers, C. 2003. Managing brand equity: a look at the impact attributes, *Journal of Product and Brand Management*, **12**(1):39-44.
- Nasir, S. 2005. The development, change, and transformation of management information systems (MIS): A content analysis of articles published in business and marketing journals, *International Journal of Information Management*, **25**(5):442–457.
- North, A.C., Shilcock, A. and Hargreaves, D.J. 2003. The effect of musical style on restaurant customers' spending, *Journal of Environment and Behavior*, **35**:712-718.
- Nunnally, J. 1978. Psychometric Theory, McGraw-Hill, New York, NY in David Martin-Consuegra, Arturo Molina & Agueda Esteban (2007), An Integrated Model of Price, Satisfaction and Loyalty: An Empirical Analysis in the Service Sector, *Journal of Product and Brand Management*, **16**(7):459-468.
- Oakland, J. 2000. Total Quality Management, Butterworth-Heinemann, Oxford.



- Oliver, R.L. 1993. Cognitive, Affective, and Attribute Based of the Satisfaction Response, *Journal of Consumer Research*, **20**:418-430.
- Oliver, R.L. 1996. Satisfaction, A Behavioral Perspective on the Consumer, McGraw-Hill, New York.
- Oliver, R.L. 1997. Customer delight: foundations, findings, and managerial insight, *Journal of Retailing*, **73**(3):311–336.
- Oliver, R.L. 1999. Value as Excellence in the Consumption Experience, in M.B. Holbrook, ed. *Consumer Value. A Framework for Analysis and Research,* London: Routledge, 43–62.
- Parasuraman, A., Zeithaml, V.A., and Berry, L.L. 1985. A Conceptual Model of Service Quality and Its Implications for Future Research, *Journal of Marketing*, **49**:41-50.
- Parasuraman, A., & Grewal, D. 2000. Serving customer and consumers effectively in the twenty-first century: A conceptual framework and overview, *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, **28**(1):9–17.
- Reicheld, F.F., Sasser, W.E., 1990. Zero defections: Quality comes to services, *Harvard Business Review*, 105–111.
- Reichheld, F.F. 1996. Learning from customer defections, *Harvard Business Review*, 56-69.
- Reichheld, F. F., & Schefter, P. 2000. E-loyalty: Your secret weapon on the web. *Harvard Business Review*, **78**(4):105–113.
- Reichheld, F.F. 2003. The One Number You Need to Grow, *Harvard Business Review*, **81**(12):46-54.
- Reinartz, Kumar, P. 2002. The impact of performance, cost, and competitive considerations on the relationship between satisfaction and repurchase intent in business markets, *Journal of service research*, **5**(1):55-68.
- Reynolds, E.C., Arnold, J.M., 2000. Customer loyalty to the salesperson and the store: examining relationship customers in an upscale retail context, *Journal of Personal Selling & Sales Management*, **20**(2):89–98.
- Ribbink, D., Van Riel Allard, C. R., Liljander, V., & Streukens, S. 2004. Comfort your online customer: Quality, trust, and loyalty on the Internet. *Managing Service Quality*, **14**(6):446–456.
- Rosen, E.D., Surprenant, C., 1998. Evaluating relationships: are satisfaction and quality enough?, *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, **9**(2): 103–125.



- Rowley, J. 1998. Quality measurement in the public sector: some perspectives from the service quality literature, *Total Quality Management*, **9**(3):321-35.
- Runyan, R., & Droge, C. 2008. A categorization of small retailer research: What does it portend for future research?, *Journal of Retailing*, **84**(1):77–94.
- Rust, R.T. and Oliver, R.L. 1994. Service Quality: Insights and Managerial Implications from the Frontier', in R.T. Rust and R.L. Oliver (eds) *Service Quality: New Directions in Theory and Practice*, 1–19.
- Rust, R.T., Zahorik, A.J., Keiningham, T.L., 1995. Return on quality (ROQ): making service quality financially accountable, *Journal of Marketing*, 58–70.
- Rust, R.T., Zeithaml, V.A., Lemon, K.N., 2000. Driving Customer Equity: How Customer Lifetime Value is Reshaping Corporate Strategy. *The Free Press*, New York.
- Schlesinger, A.L., Heskett, L.J., 1991. Breaking the cycle of failure in services, *Sloan Management Review*, **32**(3):17–28.
- Semejin, J., Van Riel Allard, C. R., Van Birgelen, M. J. H., & Streukens, S. 2005. E-services and offline fulfillment: How e-loyalty is created, *Managing Service Quality*, **15**(2):182–195.
- Shukla, P. 2001. The customer is queen, in Organizational Challenges, New Delhi, Excel Books.
- Shukla, P. 2004. Effect of product usage, satisfaction and involvement on brand switching behaviour, *Asia Pacific Journal of Marketing and Logistics*, 85-87
- Shun, Y.L., Shankar, V., Murthy, B. 2004. Customer value, satisfaction, loyalty, and switching costs: An illustration from a business-to-business service context, *Journal of the academy of marketing science*, 308-309.
- Solomon, M., Bamossy, G., Askegaard, S., 2002. Consumer Behavior. A European Perspective. *Pearson Education Limited*, London.
- Soo Joo Myung, 2007. Should a quality sub-brand be located before or after the parent brand? An application of composite concept theory, *Journal of the Academic Marketing Science*, 184-196.
- Spangenberg, E.R., Crowley, A.E. and Henderson, P.W. 1996. Improving the store environment: do olfactory cues affect evaluations and behaviors?, *Journal of Marketing*, **60**:67-80.
- Sweeney, J.C., Soutar, G.N., Johnson, W.L., 1997. Retail service quality and perceived value, *Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services*, **4**(1):39–48.
- Star InTech. 2006. Go mobile, get embedded, Star InTech, 13 June, 19.



- Suki, N. 2007. Mobile phone usage for m-learning: comparing heavy and light mobile phone users. *Campus wide information system*, 356-357.
- Taylor, S.A., Celuch, K., and Goodwin, S. 2004. The importance of brand equity to customer loyalty, *Journal of Product and Brand Mangement*, 217-220.
- Tellis, G.J. and Gaeth, G.J. 1990. Best Value, Price-Seeking, and Price Aversion: The Impact of Information and Learning on Consumer Choices, *Journal of Marketing*, **54**(2):34–45.
- The Star Online (www.thestar.com.my), "Asia's Resilient Telecom Sector Is Poised for A Mobile Revolution, *Kuwait Finance House in A Recent Report*, 21 July 2007.
- Tolba, A.H and Hassan, S.S. 2009. Linking customer based brand equity with brand market performance: a managerial approach, *Journal of Product and Brand Management*, 356-360.
- Tsoukatos, E., & Rand, G. K. 2006. Path analysis of perceived service quality, satisfaction and loyalty in Greek insurance, *Managing Service Quality*, **16**(5):501–519.
- Ulaga, W. and Chacour, S. 2001. Measuring custome rperceived value in business markets, *Industrial Marketing Management*, **30**:525-40.
- Va'zquez,R., Rodriguez-DelBosque, I.A.,MaDiaz, A.,Ruiz, V.A., 2001. Service quality in supermarket retailing: identifying critical service experiences. *Journal of Retailing and Consumer Services*, **8**(1):1–14.
- Vesel, P. and Zabkar, V. 2009. Managing customer loyalty through the mediating role of satisfaction in the DIY retail loyalty program, *Journal of retailing and consumer services*, 396-405.
- Wang, Y.-S., Lin, H.-H., & Luarn, P. 2006. Predicting consumer intention to use mobile service, *Information Systems Journal*, **16**(2):157–179.
- Weitz, A.B., Bradford, D.K., 1999. Personal selling and sales management: a relationship marketing perspective, *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, **27**(2):241–254.
- Wetzels, M., de Ruyter, K., van Birgelen, M., 1998. Marketing service relationships: the role of commitment, *Journal of Business and Industrial Marketing*, **13**(5):406–423.
- Woodruff, R.B. and Gardial, S.F. 1996. Know Your Customer. New Approaches to Understanding Customer Value and Satisfaction. *Cambridge*: Blackwell Publishers, Inc.



- Ying, F.K., Chi, M.W., Wei, J.D., 2009. The relationships among service quality, perceived value, customer satisfaction and post-purchase intention in mobile value-added services, *Journal of Marketing*, 887-896.
- Yoo, B., Donthu, N. and Lee, S. 2000. An examination of selected marketing mix elements and brand equity, *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, **28**(2):195-211.
- Yu, Y., Dean, A., 2001. The contribution of emotional satisfaction to consumer loyalty, *International Journal of Service Industry Management*, **12**(3):234–250.
- Zeithaml, V. 1988. Consumer perceptions of price, quality and value: a means-end model and synthesis of evidence, *Journal of Marketing*, **52**:2-22.
- Zeithaml, Valarie A. 2000. Service Quality, Profitability, and the Economic Worth of Customers: What We Know and What We Need to Learn, *Journal of the Academy of Marketing Science*, **28**(1):67 -85.

